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BROOKLYN OFFicg

LYONS PARTNERSHIP, L.P.; HIT
ENTERTAINMENT, INC.; GULLANE
{(DELAWARE) LLC; and THOMAS
LICENSING, LLC,

Docket No.

cvoy 3321
GLEESON, J.

Plaintiffs,

KUDDLES THE CLOWN, INC., DAPHNME

COMPLAINT
TEMBELIS, PARTIES BY ZIGGY INC., JAMES e
MARZIGLIANO, GALA CREATIVE GROUP 1
INTERNATIONAL LTD., HUGH JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

WUNDERMAN, PARTY KINGIDOM PLUS,
LTD., JOHN DOE, EVA REITH D/B/A CEST'S
COSTUME CHARACTERS, JTOHN BONERI
AND DONNA BONERI 5TEELE D/BfA 3C
PARTIES, AND RAYMOND PALARO D/B/A
PARTY [MEARTY PRODUCTIONS,

POHORELSKY, M.

Crrt” et et gt gt g gt i e fm? ma® e e e’ e et e’ e e’ e o

Defendants.

»

Plaintifts Lyons Partnership, L.P. (“Lyons™); HIT Entertainment, Tne. (“HIT™); and
Gullane (Delaware) LLC and Thomas Licensing, LLC {collectively, “Gullang”, and together
with Lyons and HIT, “Plaintiffs™}, by their undersigned attorneys, as and for their Complaint
herein, allege as follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTICGN

1. Plaintiffs arc the owners and/or exclusive United States licensees of the
intellectusal property rights in and to same of the most beloved children’s characters — Eamey'@,
Baby Bop®, and BI®, Bob the Builder®, and Thonas the Tank Engine™, Plaintiffs bring this
action to prevent Defendants from inter afia, using or renting, offering to vse ot rent, or inducing

others to use or rent cheap, knock-olf “Barney”, “Bahy Bop”, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder”, and
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*Themas the Tank Engine” costumes to provide children's entertainiment services, and [rom
advertising, promoting, or marketing such services using Plaintilfs’ registered and unregistered
trademarks and copyrights. Plaintiffs do not license the manufacture, sale, or distribution of
adult-sized costumes (except under limited circumstances described below) because of the
inhercnt danger such costumes can pose to the characters’ young fans in the hands of
unscrupulous adults.

2. Lyons is the owner of the intellectual property rights in and to the characters
Barney®, Baby Bop®, and BI® (hercinafter, each a “Barney® Character™, and, collectively, the
“Bamey® Characters”™). HIT is the exclusive United States licensee of the intellectual property
rights in and to the character Bob the Builder® (hercinafier the “Bob the Builder® Character')
Gullane, by way of cxclusive licenses, controls all rights in the United States in and 1o the
character Thomas the Tank Engine™ (hereinaiter, the “Thomas™ Character™). The
aforementioned characters are collectively denominated the “Protected Characters”,

3. Plaintiffs asscrt the following causcs of action against Defendants - infringement
of Plaintiffs' registered and unregistered trademarks and trade dress in violation of Sections 32
and 43 of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S5.C. §§ 1114 and 1125; false designation of origin and false
descriptions and representations in comimerce in violation of Section 43 of the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1125; copyright infringement in vielation of 17 U.5.C. § 301 et seq.; commen law
unfair competition under New York law; common law trademark infringement under New York
law: and violation of Scction 360- of New York General Business Law. Plaintiffs seek
damages, an accounting of each Defendant's infringing profits, and impoundment and destruction

of the infringing costumes under both the Lanham Act and the Copyright Act. Plamtiffs further
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seck preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to enjoin Defendants from continuing o
infringe upon Plaintiffls” intelleciual property rights.

JURISBICTION AND VENUE

4, This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants because Defendants transact
business in the State of New York and in this judicial district. In addition, the Court has personal
jurisdiction over Defendants pursuant to New York CPLR §§ 301 and 302, because Defendants
comnmtted tortious acts within and without the State of New York and this judicial district.

5. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to
I51.8.C § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a) and (b}. This Court has supplemental
jurigdiction over the state claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367({a), as the state and foderal claims
derive from a common nucleus of operative facts and form part of the same case or controversy.

o, Venue is proper in this judicial district porsuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and {(c).

THE PARTIES
Plaintiffs

7. Lyons is a limited partnership duly organized and existing under the laws of
Texas. Tts principal place of business is in Allen, Texas. Lyons was established as a limited
partnership in April 1992, having previously been a division of DLM, Inc., a Texas corporation.
When established as a limited partoership, all of the business, intellectual property, and goodwill
of DLM, Tne. relating to the Bamey™, Baby Bop®, and BI® children’s dinosaur characters were
assigned 10 Lyons, Lyons is engaged in, among other things, the creation, production, and
distribution of books, videocassettes, television programs, and plush dolls, and has commercially
exploited and licensed the Barney® Characters depicted therein, all of which products arc created

by Lyons for the enjeyment of preschoal children.
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8. HIT is a company otganized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware
with its principal office and place of business in New York, New York. HIT, together with ils
Unitcd States and United Kingdom affiliate companies, is a [ully integrated studio that produces
and distributes wotldwide television programming and home entertainment, publishing, and
other licensed merchandise depicting many of the most beloved classic children’s entertainment
properties, including the Barney™ Characters, Bob the Builder®, and Thomas the Tank Engine' .

9. Crullane (Delaware) LLC is o limited liability company organized and cxisting
under Delavware law with its principal place of business in New York, New York. Thomas
Licensing, LLLC s a Hmited liabtlity company with its principal place of business in New York,
New York. Gullane {(Delaware) LLC and Thomas Licensing, LLC are the execlusive United
States licensees of all trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual property rights in and to the
popular children’s television series “Thomas & Friends " {the “Thomas Series™), and the
videotapes, DVDs, and other products featuring the classic locomotive character, Thomas the
Tank Engine

Business Entity Defendants
10. Kuddles the Clown, Inc. and Daphne Tembelis

i@ Entity. Defendant Kuddles the Clown, Inc. is, and at ail relevant times
was, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of New York with its principal place of
business at 160-39 90 Avenue, Beechurst, New York 11357, Upen information and belief,
Defendant Kuddles the Clown, Inc. is engaged in the businesses of purchasing, distributing,
displaying, selling, offering to sell, renting, offering to rent, andfor using adult-sized costunies
depicting popular television and cartoon characters, including one or more of Plaintiffs’

Protected Characters; providing enfertainment services, including planning and providing
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entertainment for children’s parties using such character costumes; and promoting, marketing,
and/or otherwise advertising such services. Upon information and belief, Kuddles the Clown,
Inc. transacts substantial business in this District,

b. Owner. Upon information and beticf, Defendant Daphne Tembelis is, and
at all relevant times was, an officer, dircctor, and/or sharcholder of Kuddles ihe Clown, Ing, amd
owns, operates, andfor otherwise controls New York's Unique Entertainment Corporation. Upon
information and belicf, Daphne Tembelis: {a) is personally responsible for the daily
mangdgement, operation, and financial control of Kuddles the Clown, Ing.; {b) personally
participated in and/or had the right and ability to supervise, direct, and control infringing
activities alleged in this Complaint; andfor {c) has a direct financial interest in such infringing
activities. Upon information and belief, Defendant Daphne Tembelis resides in and/or transacts
substantial business in this District (hercinafter, Daphme Tembelis and Kueddles the Clown, Tng,
will collectively be referred to as "Knddles™).

11.  Defendant Parties by Ziggy Inc. and James Marzigliano

a. Entity. Defendant Parties by Ziggy Ine. is, and at ail relevant times was, a
corpoeration organized and existing under the laws of New York with its principal place of
business at 221 4% Street, St. James, New York 11780. Upon information and belief, Defendant
Parties by Ziggy nc. is engaged in the businesses of purchasing, distrih.uting, displaying, selling,
offering to sell, renting, offering to rent, and/or using adult-sized costumes depicting popular
television and cartoon characters, including one or more of Plainiiffs’ Protected Characters;
providing cotertainment services, including planning and providing entertainment for children’s

partics using such character costumes; promoting, marketing, and/or otherwise advertising such
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services. Upon information and belicf, Partics by Ziggy Inc. transacts substantial business in this
District.

b. Owner. Upon infornmation and belief, Defendant James Marzigliano is,
and at atl relevant times was, an officer, dircetor, andfor sharcholder of Partics by Zigey Ine. and
awns, operates, and/or otherwise controls Parties by Ziggy Inc. Upon information and belief,
James Marzigliano: (a) is personally responsible for the daily management, operation, and
financial control of Parties by Ziggy Inc, (b) personally participated in and/or had the right and
ability 1o supervise, direct, and control infringing activities alleged in this Complaiot; and/or {¢)
has a direct financial interest n such infringing activities. Upon information and belief,
Defendant Fred Sciretta resides in and/or transacts substantial business in this District
{(hereinafter, JTames Marzigliano and Parties by Ziggy Inc. will collectively be referred to as
“Ziggy™).

12.  Defendant Gala Creative Group International Ltd. and Hugh Wunderman

a, Entity. Defendant Gala Creative Group International Ltd. i3, and at all
relevant times was, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of New York with its
principal place of business at 2193 Redmond Road, Merrick, New York 11566. Upon
information and belief, Defendant Gala Creative Group International Ltd. is engaged in the
businesses of purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling, offering to sell, renting, offering to
rent, and/or using adult-sized costumes depicting popular television and cartoon characters,
including one or more of Plaintiffs’ Protected Characters; providing entertainment scrvices,
including planning and providing entertainment for children’s parties using such characler

costumes; and promoting, marketing, and/or otherwise advertising such services. Upon
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information and belicf, Gala Creative Group International Lid. transacts substantial business in
this District.

b. Owner. Upon information and belief, defendant Hugh Wunderman is,
and al all relevant times was, an officer, director, andfor shareholder of Gala Creative Group
International Ltd. and owns, operates, andfor otherwise controls Gala Creative Group
Iniemational Lid. Upon information and belict, Hugh Wunderman: (a) is personally responsible
for the daily management, operation, and financial control of Gala Creative Group Intcrnational
Lud. () personally participated in and/or had the right and ability to supervise, direct, and control
infringing activities alleged in this Complaint; and/or {c) has a direct financial interesi in such
infringing activities. Upon information and belief, Defendant Hugh Wundernan resides in
and/or transacts substantial business in this District (hereinafter, Hugh Wunderman and Gala
Creative Group International Lid. will collectively be referred to as “Gala™).

13.  Defendant Party Kingdom Plus, Ltd. and John Doe

a, Entity, Defendant Party Kingdom Plas, Lid. i3, and at all relevant times
waits, 4 corporation organized and existing under the laws of New York with its principal place of
business at 2 Crest Avenue, Elmont, New York 11003, Upon information and belief, Defendant
Party Kingdom Plus, Ltd, is engaged in the businesses of purchasing, distributing, displaying,
selling, offering to sell, renting, oflering Lo rent, and/or using adult-sized costumes depicting
popular television and cartoon charaeters, meluding one or more of Plaintiffs’ Protected
Characters; providing entertainment services, inchuling planning and providing entertainment for
children’s parties using such character costumes; and promoting, marketing, and/or otherwise
advertising such services. Upon information and belief, Party Kingdom Plus, Lid, iransacts

substantial business in this District.
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b. Owner, Upon information and beliel, Defendant John Doc is, and at all
refevant times was, an officer, director, and/or sharcholder of Party Kingdom Plus, Lid, and
owns, operates, and/or otherwise controls Party Kingdom Plus, Ltd. Upon information and
belief, John Doe: {a) is personally responsible for the daily management, operatien, and financial
comrol of Party Kingdom Plus, Ltd. (b) personally participated in andfor had the right and ability
to supervise, direct, and control infringing activities alleged in this Complaint; and/or (c) has a
direct financial interest in such infringing activities. Upon information and belief, Defendant
John Doe resides in andfor transacts substantial business i this District (hereinafter, John Doe
and Party Kingdom Plus, Lid. will coliectively be referred to as “Party Kingdom™).

Sole Proprietorship Defendants

14.  Defendant Eva Reith d/b/a Cesi’s Costumne Characters.

a. Upon information and belief, Defendant Eva Reith (*Reith”™} 15 an
individual doing business as Cesi’s Costume Characters, with a principal place of business at
81-02 913 Avenue, Woodhaven, New York 11421, Upon information and belief, Reith is, and at
all relevant times was, cngaged in the businesses of purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling,
offering 1o sell, renting, offering to rent, andfor using adult-sized costumes depicting popular
television and cartoon characters, including one or more of Plaintiffs’ Protected Characters;
providing entertainment services, including planning and providing entertainment for children’s
parties using such character costumes; and promoting, marketing, and/or otherwise advertising
such services.

15.  Defendants John Boneri and Donna Boneri Steele d/b/a 3C Parties
a. Upon information and belief, Defendants John Boneri ("Beneri™) and

Donna Boneri Steele (“Steele™) are individuals doing business as 3C Parties, with a principal
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place of business at 3340 Murray Lanc, Flushing, New York 11354, Upen information and
helief, Boneri and Steele are, and at all relevant times were, engaged in the busincsscs of
purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling, offering to sell, renting, offering to rent, and/or
using adult-sized costumes depicting popular television and cartoon characters, including one or
more of Plaintilfs’ Protected Characters; providing entertainment services, including planning
and providing entertainment for children’s paities using such character costumes, and promoting,
matketing, and/or otherwise advertising such services.
14. Defendant Raymond Palaro d/bfa Party Hearty Productions

a. Upon information and belief, Defendant Raymond Palaro (“Palaro™} is an
individual doing business as Party Hearty Productions, with a principal place of business at
12618 25™ Road, Flushing, New York 11354, Upon information and belief, Palaro is, and at all
relevant times was, engaged in the businesscs of pwrchasing, distributing, displaying, selling,
offering to sell, renting, olfering to rent, and/or using adult-zsized cestumes depicting pepular
television and cartoon characters, including one or more of Plaintiffs” Protected Characters;
providing entertainment services, including planning and providing entertainment for children’s
parties using such character costumes; and prometing, marketing, and/or otherwise advertising
such services,

FACTS

A. History of and Rights in the Barney®™ Characters,

L7. Lyous 1s the ereator and owner of the famous Barney” children’s characters,
Lyons owns numerous existing [edecal trademark and scrvice mark registrations. Lyons is also

the owner ef numerous existing federal copyrights.
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18,  Bamey® is a purple, highly stylized “Tyrannosaurus Rex”-type dinosaur, with a
swath of green down his chest and stomach, Barney" is further recognized by his friendly mien,
“mitten shaped” hands, straight line of “teeth,” and rounded body parts. This appearance and
trade dress of Barney® is distinctive and results from the combination of a number of arbitrary
elements, including, but not limited to, the proportion of the character’s oversized, rounded head,
the shape of his tail, the combination and configmation of colors, the representation of teeth, the
placcment of eyes, and the use of yellow “toe™ balls on his feet. Barney® is a positive,
wholcsome character who encourages children to use their imaginations and to solve prablems.
Barney® is brought to life by an actor (in a specially designed costume) as a six foot tall
helpmate and fricnd through the imagination of children. A true and correct picture of Bamney®
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The character’s appearance is protected by a federal service
mark registration for entertainment services. A true and complete copy of this registration is
altached hercto as Exhibit B.

19. The first videotape leaturing Barney™ was “The Backyard Show” Since 1988,
Lyons has produced and sold 49 original Barney” videotapes for home viewing. A true and
complete copy of the federal copyright registration protecting “The Backyard Show” 1s attached
hereto as Exhibit C.

20, On April 6, 1992, the Public Broadcasting Service (“PBS") began airing a new
seties, “Barney & Friends ™ (the “Burney”® Series™), featuring the Barney@ Character. More
than 228 cpisodes of the Series have been produced by Lyons,

21.  In 1991, DLM, Inc. created Baby Bop®, another highly stylized dinosaur
character, Baby Bop® made her first appearance in a video titled “Barney in Concert” and is

featured with Barney” in videos and elsewhere. The appearance and trade dress of Baby Bop® is

10
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distinetive, and the character appears as a greca, highly stylized “Triccratops”-type dinosaur,
with a purple chest and stomach, black cyelashes, pink dancing slippers, and a pink bow in her
feathery hair. A true and correct picture of Baby Bop” is attached herelo as Exhibit D, The
character’s appearance i protected by a federal service mark registration for entertaimment
services, A true and complete copy of this registration is attached hereto as Exhibit E. A true
and complete copy of the federal copyright registration protecting “Barney in Concert” is
attached hereto as Exhibit F.

22, A third dinosaur character, BJ®, was created by Lyons in 1993, The appearance
and trade dress of BI® is distinctive and the character appears as a }fﬂuﬂﬁ;‘.’, highly stylized
“Stegosaurus”-Lype dinosaur, with a green chest and stomach, a smattering of freckles across his
nose, red high top sneakers, and a red basehall cap, often turned askew. A true and correct
picture of BJ® is attached hereto as Exhibit G. The character’s appearance is protected by a
federal service mark registration for Entertainment Scrvices. BI®, portraying Baby Bop™s older
brother, made his first appearance on the Barmney® Scries in an cpisode titled “Look at Me, I'm
3 A wrue and complete copy of this registration is attached hereto as Exhibit H. A true and
complete copy of the Federal copyright registration protecting “Look at Me, 'm 37 15 attached
hereto as Exhibit L

23, Lyons also manufactures, distributes and sells plush dolls bearing the unique
Bamey®, Baby Bop®, and BI® images and trade dress. Photographs of the Barney® Characters
plush dolls are attached hereto as Exhibit J. The plush toys are the subject of federal copyright
registrations, true and correct copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit X. In addition, the

configuration of the plush toys is protected by federal trademark registration Nos. 1,807,708

11
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{Bamey®}, 1,918,112 {Baby Bﬂp®}, and 1,937,783 (BJ@}, copics of such 1'cgistratidns are
attached hereto as Exhibit L.

24, Lyons further owns rights in approximately 294 books fealuring the Bamey@'
Characters, which were created, published and sold either through licensing agreements with
other companics. In addition, in August 1994, Lyons launched the Bamney Magazine for
children, now published six times a year.

25, The appearances of Lyons’ Bamey@' Characters arc inherently distinctive and
serve to identify Lyons as the source of goods and services hearing the images of the Barney®
Characters. As stated above, Lyons has obtained federal trademark and scrvice mark
registrations for the configuration of costumes for the Barney® Characters, for the configuration
of plush dolls depicting such characters, and for the appearance of the character for
entertainment services, All of these registrations were granted without the United States Patent
& Trademark Olfice requiring proof of secondary meaning, evidencing the inherently distinctive
nature of the marks, A true and correct list of thosc registered trademarks and service marks is
attached hereto as Exhibit M,

26. Altemnatively, the Bamey® Characters have also acquired distinctiveness through
widespread promotion and nse. The Barmcy® Characters enjoy tremendous success, widespread
visibility, and goodwill throughout the United States and abroad. The Barney® Characters’
smiling appearances and friendly micns have become instantly recognizable to, and loved by,
millions of preschoo! childeen and their parents. The purchasing public has come to associate the
Barney® Characters with Lyons as the source of products and services.

27.  Evidence of the existence of such secondary meaning includes, but is not limited

to:

12
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the wide recognition by the media of the uniqueness, popularity, and
excellence of the aney@ Characters. The Dallas Morning News, on
May 9, 2004, reporiad that “a decade or so after it burst onte the television
scenc [the Scrics| continues to offer a wholesomely appropriate,
educational television for pre-schoolers;” the August 1994 issue of Child
Magazine listed Bamey® as “one of the most inlluential personalities in
young kids® lives™;

the numerous posilive reviews, nominations, and awards received by the
Barney” Series and by the videotapes as quality educational programming
for preschoolers, The Series won a Daytime Emmy Award in 2001 and
was recently rontinated for this honor; Bamey® Charactets videotapes
have received the Parents Choice Award, the Oppenheim Toy Portfolio
Gold Seal Award, the California Chilkdren’s Video Award, and the Film
Advisory Board Award of Excellence, and was recently the recipient of
Best Products Call, Home Video/DVYD category at the 2006 iParenting
MModia Awards;

the Barney® Series has been one of the top-rated children’s television
shows on public television since its debut in April 1992, In February
2007, the Bﬂ[ﬂﬁ}f@' Series had an average of 1,200,000 viewers per week
on PBS. The Barney® Series also appears daily on the PBS Kids SpmutSM
channel, which is available to more than 30 million homes in the United
States;

morc than one million children who are or have been members of the
Barnc}'@ Fan Club, and the more than 87,000 fans who visil the Bamey@
wehsite weekly;

more than 80 million Barne:,"m videos, more than 100 million Bamey@
books, 30 million plush toys, and six million andiotapes and CDs that have
been sold;

books cmbodying the Barney® Character have appeared on Publishers
Weekly “Best Sellers” list more than 140 times in six years, Six titles
have sold more than two million copies each. Elsven titles have sold more
than a million copies cach, Two Bamey® books were named as
“outstanding™ in the 19297 fallAwinter issue of Reviews from the Parents
Council. Other Barney® books have been awarded the Children’s Choice
Award, the Parent’s Guide to Media Award, the National Parenting
Publication Award and Baby Magazine's Best Books for Children award;
and

the first two Bamey? record albums were recognized as triple platinum
(awarded for sales of three millipn neits) and platicum (awarded for sales
of one million units), respectively, by the Recording Industry Association
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of America the first two Bamey@ Characters’ song colleclions on compact
disc and cassette tape have been certified double platinum and gold,
respectively, by the Recording Industry Association of America; and the
character has been named three times by Billboard Magazine as
“Children’s Entertainer of the Year” (1996, 1997 and 1998}. In December
1997, the Barney® holiday album, “Happy Holidays Love, Barney®,” was
number {wo on Billboard’s Top Kid Audic chart, and even appeared in
Billboard’s Top 200 chart, which includes all categorics.

28, Preschool children also have increasingly identilied the Bamey® Characiers with
live performances and appearances, The Barney® Characters appear in a live stage show 363
days 2 year at a major Barney® attraction at the Universal Studios theme park in Orlando,
Florida, which opened in July 1993, On information and belief, more than eight million people
have seen this anthorized show since its debut,

29, During the period of September 1996 through Deceamber 1998, a major stags
show tour featuring the Bame}r@ Characters traveled throughout the United States, Canada,
Mexico and the United Kingdom. Nearly 1wo million people attended ihe show, with
performances sold out on numerons occasions. A second major stage show commenced in
Seplember 1999, and included approximately 200 shows in 35 cities in its eight month tour.
Approximalely one million people attended the second stage show during its tour. A third major
stage show commenced in January 2003, and included approximately 370 shows in 94 cities.
More than 890,000 people have attended this third stage show. The fourth major stage show, the
Twentieth Anniversary Tour, is scheduled for the Fall 2007 and Spring 2008, and will Feauwe

Barneyﬂ' in 20 cities across the United States.

B. History of and Rights in the Bob the Builder® Character.

a0, By way of agreement between HIT Entertainment Limited and Keith Chapman,

creatar of the Bob the Builder™ Character, HI'T' Entertainiment Limited is the owner of all United

14
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States wrademarks relaced to the character. Turther, HIT Entartainment Limited and Keith
Chapman are joint owners of the copyright in the Bob the Builder® character. HIT
Entertainment Limited has licensed to HIT the sele and exclusive right to exploit and distribute
the Bob the Builder® Character and property in the United States.

3. In 1997, HIT Entcrtainment Limited, through its state-of-the-art, stop-{rame
animation studio, HOT Animation Limited (“HOT"™), began developing a stop-frame animated
children's television series based upon the Baob the Builder® Character {the “BTB Series™).
More than 136 thirty-minute episades have been produced since then, and production of new
cpisodes continues. Likewise, numerous videotapes and DVDs featuring the Bob the Builder®
Character have been produced {or HIT Entertainment Limited by HOT.

32. In 1998, HIT Entertainment Limited liccnsed the rights to broadcast the BTB
Series to BBC TV. Bob the Builder® made his broadeast debut in the United Kingdom in
April 1998 on the BBC, and the BTB Series has aired continuously throughout the United States
since 2001.

33. Furthermore, HIT and its licensees have continuously created and published
books and other publications featuring the Bob the Builder® Character. To date, the Bob the
Builder® Character is featured in 139 books.

34,  The appearance and tradc dress of the Bob the Builder® Character is distinctive
and is identified by a combination of arbitrary and distinet visual elements which make up his
overall appearance, design, and irade dress, including, but not limited to, his bright yellow hard
hat, his orange and red checkered shirt, his blue overalls, work boots, and his tool belt full of

lools. Bob the Builder® is a spirited and positive character, focusing on sclving problems with
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teamwork and a “can do™ attitude. A true and correct picture of the Bob the Ruilder® Character
is attached hereto as Exhibit N.

35, As avesult of the immense populatity and exposure of the BTB Series, and the
videotapes, DVDs, and books based upon the character, the Bob the Builder® Character is
instantly recognized throughout the United States and abroad by pre-school children and their
parents.

36.  HIT has obtained copyright registrations for the BTB Series episedes and for
related videotapes, DVDs, and books. A true and correct list of those copyright registrations is
attached herelo as Exhibit O.

37, The appearance of the Bob the Builder® Character is inhetently distinetive and
serves to identify HIT as the source of goods and services bearing the character's image. HIT
has obtained registrations of several federal trademarks and service marks related to the
BTB Scrics and to the Bob the Builder® Character, including a service mark registration
protecting the character’s appearance for entertainment services. A true and correct list of those
registered trademarks and service marks is attached hercto as Exhibits P and Q.

38.  Alternatively, the Bob the Builder® Character has also acquired distinctiveness
through widespread promotion and use. The character enjeys tremendous success, widespread
visibility, and goodwill throughout the United States and abroad. The purchasing public has
come to associate the Bob the Builder® Character with HIT as the source of products and
services,

39.  Evidence of the existence of such sccondary meaning includes, but is not limited
by

a. Media recognition of the unigueness, popularity and excellence of the
BTB Series, including the 2003 Children’s Animation Award at the
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SPROGCEETS luternational Film Festival and the 2003 Children’s Award
for Best Animation from the British Academy of Filin and Television Arts
for the first full length Bob the Builder® feature, "A Christimas to
Remember™ and the 2007 Children’s Best Programme Award from the
Home Entertainment Week Awards for the Bob the Builder ® feature,
“Ruiit to be Wild™,

positive reviews, nominations, and awards received by the BTB Serics and
by the videotapes and D'V Ds as quality educational programming for
preschoolers, including receipt of the 2006 iParenting Media Award and
receipt of the 2000 Aurora Award for Platinum Best of Show;

continued high demand for goods and programs embodying the Bob the
Builder® character;

the fact that the BTB Series launched in the United States on the Nick Iv.
Channel in January 2001, and was the highest-rated premiere ever on Nick
Jr.;

In February 2007, the BTB Scries had an average of 1,910,000 viewers
per week on PBS. The BTB Series also appears daily on the PBS Kids
Sprout™ channcl, which is available to thirty million homes in the United
Statcs;

the more than 130 countries across five continents i which the BTB
Series airs and the attendant global following;

the launch of a new BTB Series in the United States on PBS in 2005
called “Pob the Builder — Project: Build If”;

the sale of more than 11 million videes and DVDs in the United States and
Canada, many of which have achieved platinum-selling status, and
continncd demand for additional video and DV titles:

the sale of more than 17 million Bob the Builder® books in the U.S. and
Canada;

the toys and merchandise related te the BTB Series featwred in thousands
of toy storcs across the country;

the immense popularity of the Bob the Builder” interactive website
{www.bobthebuilder.com), which launched in 1999 and which is accessed
by hundreds of thousands of American visitors cach month;

the fact that the Series’ theme song, “Can We Fix If? Yes We Canl™,
released as a single in December 2000, was No. 1 on the United Kingdom
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singles chart for three weeks and named the best-selling single of 2004,
selling more than one million copies; and

m, the success of 3 major stage show tour featuring Bob the Builder®, called
“Bob the Builder” LIVE!” which launched in February 2002 and toured
throughout the United Kingdom. Meore than 100,000 people attended the
show, with numerous sold out performances. The show was so successul
that it was brought to the United States and Canada, where between March
2003 and May 2004, it tourcd 48 citics, playing 175 shows to audiences
totaling more than 371,000 persons.

C. of and Rights in the Thomas the Tank Engine” Character,

40,  The Thomas  Character was created by The Reverend W. Awdry in 1945, Over
the years, The Reverend Awdry and his son Christopher wrote 39 boolks featuring the character
in illustrated railway stories for children, known as ¥ The Railway Series.” Through “The
Reitway Series” books, the Thomas = Character became known and loved as & fussy, Victorian-
era tank cngine (or locomotive), who repeatedly finds himself getting into mischicvous
adventurcs by attempting to do things best left to bigger and more sensible locomotives.

41. I 1987, Gullane Entertainment, Inc. obtammed an exclusive licensc of all
television and merchandising rights related to the Thomas Series in the United States. Those
rights were assigned 0 and assumed by plaintif Thomas Licensing, LLC in 2005,

42, Iz 1958, plaintiff Gullane (Delaware) LLC obtained an exclusive license for all
United States publishing rights related to “The Ratlway Series.”

43, The first animated program featuring the Thomas' Character was produced in
1991 {the “Thomas Series™). More than 130 episodes have been produced since then, and
production of new episodes continues. The Thomas Series is produced using a painstaking and
labor-intensive stop-frame animation process, combined with dynantic special effects, to create

intricate railway scttings, rofling landscapes, and charming individual engine characters,
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44.  The appearance and trade dress of Thomas — Character is distinctive and is
identified by a combination of arbitrary and distinct visual elements which make up his overall
appearance and design. The character is a stylized, Victorian-era locomotive with a whimsical
face depicted on the {ront of the steam engine. The character is [urther recognized by his
distinctive blue body with red and yellow trim, a yellow number “1” painted on his side, the
black tank engine with triangular-shaped eyebrows, large round eves, and a smiling, childlike
face. A true and correct picture of the Thomas the Tank Enginem Character is attached hereto as
Exhibit R.

45.  As aresult of the immense popularity and exposure of the Thomas Series, the
videotapes, DVDs, and other products, the Thomas' Character is instantly recognized
thronghout the United States by pre-school children and their parents.

46, Furthermere, Gullane and its licensees have continuously created and published
books and other publications featuring the Thomas = Character. To date, the Thomas ' Character
is featured in 367 books.

47. Gullane and its predecessors and affiliates have secured copyright registrations for
the Thomas Series episades and for related videotapes, DVDs, and books. A true and corect list
of those copytight registrations is attached hereto as Exhibit S,

48.  Gullane and its predecessors and affiliates have also obtained registration of
federal trademarks and service marks related to the Thomas Series and to the Thomas
Character. A true and correct list of thosc repistered trademarks and service marks is attached
hereto as Exhibit T.

49.  The appearance of the Thomas' Character is inherently distinctive and serves to

identify Guliane as the source of goods and services bearing the character’s image.
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50.  Allernatively, the Thomas  Character has also acquired distinctiveness through
widcspread promotion and use. The character enjoys tremendous suecess, widesprcad visibility,
and goodwill throughout the United States and abroad. The purchasing public has come 10
associate the Thomas — Character with Guilane as the source of produc’té and services,

31, Evidence of the existence of such secondary meaning includes, bul is not limited
tey:

A the wide recognition by the media of the uniqueness, popularity, and
excellence of the Thomas Series, inchuding two daytime Emmy® awards
and seven Emmy”™ award nominations, as well as the nomination for 2005
Froperty of the Year by the Toy Industry Association Inc.'s Sixth Annual
Toy of the Year Awards:

b. the numerous posilive reviews, nominations, and awards received by the
Thomas Series and by the videotapes and DVDs as quality educational
programming for preschoolers, including endorsements by Kid's First,
Parents” Cheice, Dr. Toy, Cppenheim, and the Film Advisory Board;

C. the continted high demand for goods and programs embodying the
Thomas  character, including the suecess of the Thomas and Friends
series which, in February 2007, had an average of 1,350,000 viewers per

week on PBS;

d. the sale of more than 47 million videos and DVDs, most of which have
achieved platinum-selling status, and continued demand for additional
video and DVD litles;

. the typical placement of no fewer than four videos of the Thomas Sexies in

VideoScan's “DVD and VHS Top 100" chart weekly;
f. the sale of more than 145 million bocks in the United States and Canada;
g the Loys and merchandisc related to the Thomas Series featured in
thousands of 10y stores across the United States, and the more than 100
awards given 1o the leading toy line, the “Thomas & Friends Weooden
Raitway,” since its launch in 1993,

h. the fact that alimost 2 million fans of the Thomas Series attended more
than 40 “Day Out with Thomas® " live events in 2005 and 2006; and
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1 in 2007, the Thomas'" Character is making his United States live stage
debut in the 90-minute musical adventure, Thomeas & Friends Live! On
Stage in “Thomas Saves the Day.”

D. I*'rotection of the Characters by Plaintiffs

52, The tremendous success of the Barm:}f@ Series, the BTB Series, and the Thomas
Series, has brought Plaintiffs many prospective licensing suitors from the business world and toy
industry. Plaintiffs have, with careful circumspection, pranted licenses for the manufacture and
sale of numerous products featuring their characters’ trademarks.

53, Plaintiffs have built their “brands,” establishing tremendous equity in the
intellectual properties related to their characters, by carefully circumseribing and monitoring ail
related materials and activitics to ensure that they are consistent with cach character’s image,
The characters’ images arc not licensed for use in connection with any product inappropriate for
their young fans. Stringent safety, quality contrel, and approval standards are imposed upon all
licensees of Protected Characters merchandise.

54, Lyons also has not licensed the manufacture (other than for its own use),
distribution, sale, or rental of any costumes for adults that depict the Barney® Characters. Lyons
has limited the granting of licenses to provide theatrical performances or appearances by
costiined characters that lock like the Bamf:}-'® Characters to a select group of third parties (for
example, Universal Studios Florida, and only 4s 4 permanent attraction in the Orlando theme
park). Even at Universal Studios Florida, the Barney™ Characters’ appearances are limited to
scripted stage performances, and Lyons docs not permit the Barney® Characters to be used as
“wialk-around” characters.

55.  Further, Lyons carefully chorcographs personal appearances by the Barncy®

Characters because it considers the children’s experience of the Barney® Characters to be one of
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utmost trust and confidence. The characters appear only where children are present; it is the
children's imaginations that bring the characters to life, No child is ever allowed to see the
characters unless they are fully and completely costursed. The Barney® Characters are never
seen eating or deinking, The Barney® Characters and all those who travel with them comport
themselves in a courteous and appropriate fashion. And Bamey@ rarely visits any town without
making a private visit to the local children’s hospital,

56.  HIT similarly has not licensed the manufacture {other than for its own nse),
distribution, sale or rental of any costumes for adults depicting the Bob the Builder® Character.
Morcover, personal appearances by Bob the Builder® are carefully choreographed by HIT.

Ly Gullane also has not licensed the manufacture (other than for its own use),
distribution, sale or rental of auy costumes for adults depicting the Thomas the Tank Engine
Character. Moreover, personal appearances by Thomas the Tank Engine." are carefully
choreographed by Gullane.

58. The primary reason for the decision not to license adult costumes for commercial
use is to preserve and carefully monitor the exposure of the Bamey® Characters, Bob the
Builder®, and Thomas the Tank Engine™, so that very young children will not be distressed or
upset by the unpredictable {and potentially dangerous) conduct of unauth.nrized impersonators in
knock-off costumes trading on the goodwill of the Bob the Builder®, Thomas the Tank Engine ',
and the Bamney” Characters,

59.  In addition, Plaintiffs are concerned that the presentations made by such
unauthorized performers would not meet the Protected Characters’ image standards, appropriale
to such enduring classic characters. For example, a real Barllf:}f@ costume costs approximately

$20,000 to manulacture and weighs about 40 pounds. Significant training is required for the
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performer wearing the costume Lo learn how to do the runs, spins, leaps, and dances
characteristic of Barney®. Similarly, a real Bob the Builder™ costume costs more than $10,000
1o manutacture, and significant training is required for the performer wearing the costumne to
learn how to do the motions and actions charactexistic of the Bob the Builder® Character.

60.  Plantiffs have entered into wrilten lHeense agreements with third partics,
authorizing the use of their trademarks and copyrighted characters on dozens of products,
including stickers, plush dolls, lunch boxes, coloring books, knapsacks, clothing, and toys for
pre-school aged children. Under each such agreement, Plaintiffs have the right to control the
nature and quality of goeds on which their marks and characters are used,

61.  Licensees that manufacture products based vpon the Protected Characters are
required to follow strict guidelines regarding the quality of such merchandise. These guidelines
reflect Plaintiffs™ concerns about maintaining and advancing the goodwill and businass
reputation that they have built in products depicting their characters,

62.  Moreover, Plaintiffs all require their licensees o display one or more trademark
notices on each product to identify it as a legitimate product, Lyons farther requires cach

authorized Lyons product to display a Barue:-,f@’ Characters tag,
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E. Defendants’ Unauthorized Use of Plaintiffs® Protected Characters and Marks

63, Unforiunately, ihe popularity and success of these carefully protected properties
has created a huge market for cheap knock-offs and illicit poods utilizing the namcs, likenesscs,
trademarks, and copyrights of characters owned and licensed by Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs receive
frequent reports of unauthorized goods and services, from novelty key chains and third-rate
dolls, 1o “Barney”, “Baby Bop™, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Enging”
impersonators who provide children’s entertainment services and endorse products and
husinesses.

64, Plaintifis have taken vigorous steps to enforce their imtellectual property rights,
zenerally through the procurement of voluntary cessation of infringing activities. Due to the
pemicious nature of unauthorized personal appearances by “Barmmey™, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob
the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine™ impersonaiors, Plaintiffs have recently focused
considerable ellort on eniertainment and party service businesses offering knock-off.“Bamey”,
*Baby Bop”, “BJI™, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” costumes,

65, As part of Plainiilfs’ enforcement efforts, Plaintifls issned demand letters
requiting enlertainment and party service companies to cease their infringing activities, to
surrender their knock-off costumes, and to identify, in writing, the source of their costumes.

60, Meoreover, Lyons, for its part, filed more than 90 enforcecment actions in the past
$1X vears in more than 20 states against mumerous defendants alleged to have infringed Lyons’
rights in the Barney@ Characters. In each such action, Lyons alleged that defendants had made
conmmercial use of full-size, adult costumes bearing the likeness of the Bamey® Characters,
Lyons has filed suit against both manufacturers of mfringing costumes as well as downstream

users who re-sold the costumes, rented them, and/or used them to provide unauthorized
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performances. Nearly ail of these actions have beea resolved pursvant to setilement, the terms of
which typically include stipulated permanent injunctions against fusther such activity.

67. As part of its enforcement efforts, Plaintiffs became aware of numerous
individnals and entities engaged in the business of purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling,
renting, offering to rent, using, and/or offering to use (and inducing others to do the foregoing)
adult-sized costumes depicting Plaintiffs’ Protected Characters in conjunction with providing
children’s cotertainment services.

68.  Beginning in April 2006, Plaintiffs issued seitlement demand packages to
confirmed infringing parties, including the Defendants herein, to provide them with an
opporiunity 19 setle with Plaintiffs on reasonable terms without Liligation. These packages
conlained a draft of this Complaint, and a letter demanding that Defendants cease and desist their
infringing conduct and compensate Plaintifl’s for their infringements to date, To date,
Defendanis herein have failed to do so.

69.  In order to scttie with Plaintiffs, an infringing party was required to: {1) surrender
all infringing costumecs to Plaintiffs for destruction, (2} complete a questionnaire detailing infer
alic, how often each infringing costume was used and the ameunts charged to provide services
using each infringing costume, (3) pay a reasonable setflement amount commensurate with the
nature and extent of its infringing activities, and (4) agree 10 a permanent injunction, The parties
would then provide each other with mutual rcleases.

70.  The Defendants named in this action engaged in infringing activities which may
include purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling, renting, and/or using adult-sized character
costurzes which bear the likenesses and images of the Protected Characters for commercial

purposes andfor inducing others to engage in such activities. Moreover, upon information and
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belicf, Defendants advertise, promote, and/or otherwise market te the public that they provide
such services.

71. Kuddles the Clown. Upon information and belief, Kuddles the Clown was and is
cngaged in the business of providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide
children’s entertainiment services, and/or inducing others to provide children's entertainment
services using adult-sized costumes bearing the likenesses of Barney® and Bob the Builder®,
Plaintiffs’ investigation of Kuddles the Clown’'s infringing activities revealed that on August 3,
20035, Kuddles the Clown offered to provide children’s entertainment services using knock-off
“Barney” and “Bob the Builder” costumes. Kuddles the Clown promoted, advertised, andfor
olfered its infringing services using one or more of Plaintiffs’ marks. Accordingly, Daphne
Tembelis and Kuddles the Clown, Inc, are jointly and severally liable for copyright and
trademark mfringement.

72.  Ziggy. Upon information and belief, Ziggy was and is engaged in the business of
providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide children’s entertainment
services, and/or inducing others to provide children’s entertainment services using adult-sized
costummes beating the likeness of Barney®, Baby Bop®, and Bob the Builder®. Plainiffs’
investigation of defendants’ infringing activities revealed that on April 28, 2006, Ziggy offered
to provide children’s entertainment services using a knock-off “Barney”, “Baby Bop”, and “Beb
the Builder” ¢costume. Upon information and belief, Ziggy promoted, advertiscd, and/or offered
its infringing services using one or more of Plaintiffs’ marks. Accordingly, James Marzigliano
and Parties by Ziggy Inc. are jointly aud severally liable for copyright and trademark

infringement.
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73, Gala, Upon information and belief, Gala was and is engaged in the business of
providing clildren’s entertaimment services, offering to provide childmn‘s cntertainment
services, and/or inducing others to provide children’s entertainment services using adult-sized
costumes bearing the likeness of Bal‘I'lf:},-’@' and Bob the Builder®. Plaintiffs’ investigation of
defendants’ infringing activities revealed that on June 1, 20035, Gala offered to provide children's
entertainment services using a knock-off “*Bamey™ and “Bob the Builder” costume. Plaintiff’s
investigation fuither revealed that on May 25, 2006, Plaintiff offered to provide children's
entertainment services using a knock-off “Barney’ costume. Upon information and belief, Gala
promoted, advertised, and/or offered its infringing services using one or more of Plaintilfs’
marks. Accordingly, Hugh Wunderman and Gala Creative Group Interpationsal Lid. are jointly
and scverally liable for copyright and trademark infringement.

74.  Party Kingdom. Upon information and belief, Party Kingdom was and is
engaged in the business of providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide
children’s cntertainment services, and/er inducing others to provide children’s entertainment
services using adult-sized costumes bearing the likenesses of Barney®. Plaintiffs’ investigation
of Party Kingdem's infringing activities revealed that on April 12, 2006, Party Kingdom offered
to provide children’s entertainment services using a knock-off “Bamey” costumme. Upon
informatien and belief, Party Kingdom promoted, advertised, andfer offered its infringing
services using one or more of Plaintiffs’ marks. Accordingly, John Idoe and Party Kingdom
Plus, Lid. are jointly and severally liable for copyright and trademark infringeiment.

75.  Reith. Upon information and belief, Reith was and is engaged in the business of
providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide children’s entcrtainment

services, and/or mducing others to provide children’s entertainmenl services using adult-sized
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costumes bearing the likenesses of Barney'@* Buby Bup@', BI®, Bob the Builder®, and Thomas the
Tank Engine™. Plaintiffs’ investigation of defendant’s infringing activities revealed that on
June 7, 2006, defendant olfered to provide children’s entertainment scrvices using a knock-off

chEN 1Y

“Barney”, “Baby Bop”, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank™ costumes. Upon
informaticn and belief, Reith promoted, advertised, and/or offered her infringing services using
onc or more of Plaintiffs’ marks.

76, Boneri and Steele. Upoen information and belief, Boneri and Steele were and are
engaged in the business of providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide
children’s entertainment services, and/or inducing others to provide children's entertainment
services using adult-sized costunmes bearing the likeness of anay®+ Plaintiffs’ investigation of
defendant’s infringing activitics revealed that on August 9, 2005 defendants offered to provide
children’s entertainment services using a knock-off “Barney” costume. Boner: and Stecle
promoted, advertised, and/or offered her infringing scrvices using one or more of Plaintiffs’
marks.

77.  Palare. Upon information and belief, Palaro was and is engaged in the business
of providing children’s entertainment services, offering to provide children’s enterlaimment
services, andfor inducing others to provide children’s entertainment services using adult-sized
costumes bearing the likenesses of Barncy® and Bob the Builder®. Plaintiff's investigation of
defendant’s inlringing activities revealed that on August 5, 2005 and August 8, 2005 defendant
offered to provide children’s entertainment services using a knock-off “Bamey™ and *Bob the

Builder” ¢ostume, Upon information and belief, Palare promoted, advertised, and/or offered his

infringing services using one or more of Plaintiffs” marks.
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78.  Defendants are not autherized licensees or contractors of any of Plaintiffs’
Protected Characters.

79.  The overall appearance of Defendants’ knock-off “Barney”™, “Baby Bop™, “BJ”™,
“Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” character costumes is substantially similar to
the gennine Protected Characters.

80, Delendants’ “Barney™, “Baby Bop”, “BJ”, “*Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the
Tank Engine” character costumes are desigued and used for live appearances at children’s parties
and other events and are intended to suggest that the genuine Protected Characters are appearing.

81, Defendants’ knock-off “Barney™, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob the Builder”, and
*Thoas the Tank Engine” character costumes are passed off as Plaintiffs’ genuine characters
with the intent to deceive and defraud the public and to appropriate Plaintiffs” exclusive rights in
and to the Protected Characters and related intellectual property.

82, Delendants’ conduct is likely to canse conlusion, cause mistake, or to deceive
consumers, as to the source and origin of delendants’ knock-off costumes, as well as the
spousorship of live appearances of the Defendants” konock-off “Bamey”, “Baby Bop”, “BI”,
*Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” costumes.

83 Delendants’ conduct will have a substantial, adverse impact on Plaintiffs’ existing
md projected interstate business of marketing products and services ideﬁtified by the Protected
Characters and related intellectual property and the resulting goodwill, -

84, Based upon Plaintiffs’ investigations, it is clear that Deféndants regularly provide
to the public children’s entertainment services utilizing knock-off costumes, and each receives

significant revenue from such services.
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85 Plaintiffs have suffered, and unless such infringing activities are enjoined,
Plaintiffs will continue to suffer, irreparable haom,

86.  For all of the foregoing reasons, it is respectfully requested that Defendant be
enjoined from using knock-off “Barney”, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas
the Tank Engine™ costumes and from otherwise inlringing upon Plaintiffs” intellectual property
rights in the Protected Characters,

COUNT 1
{Infringement of Teademarks, Service Marks & Trade Dress - Lanham Act, §§ 32 and 43)

77, Plaintilfs repeat each allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 86 of this
Complaint,

BB, Lyons is the owner of the federal trademark and service niark registrations
relating to the BamE}f@ Characters, a list of which is incorperated by reference and attached
hereto. See Exhibit M. These registrations were duly and lawfully issued by the United States
Patent and Trademark Office and remain in full force and effect.

29, HIT and Gullane are the exclusive United States licensees with respect to federal
trademark and scrvice mark registrations relating to the Bob the Builder™ and Thomas the Tank
Engine” Characters, lists of which are incorporated by reference and attached hereto, See
Exhibils P, Q, and T, respectively, These registrations were duly and lziwfully issued by the
United States Patent and Trademark Oflice and remain in full force and effect.

a0, Defendants have intentionally and knowingly copied Plaintiffs’ distinctive
trademarks and trade dress i the Protected Characters by the design, manufacture, sale, offering
1o sell, distribution, and/or offering to distribute adult knock-off costumes similar or identical in

appearance to the Protected Characters.
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91, Upon information and beliet, Defendants’ knock-off “Barney™ costumes lock like
a highly stylized purple Tyrannosaurus Rex-type dinosaur, with green chest and stomach,

92, Upon information and belief, Defendants™ knock-off “Baby Bop™ costumes look
like a highly stylized green Triceratops-type dinesaur, with purple ¢hest and stomach, black
eyelashes, pink dancing slippers, and a pink bow in her hair.

a3, Upon information and belicf, Defendants’ knock-off “BJ” costumes look like a
itighly stylized yellow Stegosaurus-type dinosaur, with a green chest and stomach, a smattering
of frecklcs across his nose, red high 1op sneakers, and 4 red baseball cap.

94,  Upon information and belief, Defendants’ knock-off *Bob the Builder™ costumes
look like a construction worker, with a smiling lace, blue work overalls, a vellow shirt, a utility
belt, work boots, and a yellow construction hat,

93.  Upon information and belief, character, Defendants” knock-off “Thomas the Tank
Engine” costumes look like a locomotive with blue body with red and vellow trim, a biack tank
engine with triangular-shaped eyebrows, large round eyes, and a smiling, childlike face on the
front.

96. Upon information and belief, the overall appearances of Defendants’ knock-off
“*Barney”, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” costumes arc
substantially similar or virtually identical to the Protected Charscters.

97.  While Plaintiffs do not license the manufacture or distribution of any Barncy”,
Baby Bop®, BI®, Bob the Builder®, and Thomas the Tank Engine adult-sized character
costumes (except as stated above), the Protected Characters regularly appear in live theatrical
shows sponsored by Plaintiffs adfor make select personal appearances selected by PlaintifTs

before thousands of children.
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98,  Defendants’ provide their knock-off “Barncy”, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob the
Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” costumes andfer induce others to provide such
costumes for use in live appearances targeting children, Defendants’ infringing products are thus
presented to children through the same or similar channels in which legitimate Protected
Characters are presented.

9%, Defendants’ advertising, marketing, promeotion, display and/or distribution of
knock-off “Bamey”, *Baby Bop”, “BJ”, *Beb the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine”
character costumes target preschool children who are the biggest fans and customers of the
Protected Characters and related products.

100.  Defendants, without permission, license, or authority from Plaintitfs, adverdsed,
premoted, marketed, sold, offered to sell, rented, effered to rent, and/or distributed (and/or
induced others to engage in such activities) children’s entertainment services vsing the knock-off
“Barney”, “Baby Bop”, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder", and “Theoimas the Tank Engine” costumes, in
violation of the rights of Plaintiffs, within this District.

101, Prior to the acts of Defendants complained of herein:

a. Plaintiffs exploited their Protected Characters via the production and sale
and/or licensing of videotapes, DVDs, books, and other products, vnder

their various trademarks and copyrights, which have enjoyed a deserved
favorable reputation of great value;

b, Plaintiffs expended and continue to spend large sums of money to build,
maineain, and extend their repatations;

C. Plaintiffs engaged and continue to engage in interstate activities designed
to promote the products sold and the goodwill associated with their
registered and unregistered trademarks, service marks, and trade dress
throughout the United States;

d. Plaintiffs engaged in, and continue to engage in, interstate activities
designed to promote the business and goodwill identified by each of the
registered and wegistered trademarks, service marks, and trade dress in
interstate commerce and to cxpand the use and reputation of the
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lrademarks, service marks, wrade dress, and property throughout the United
Siates:

€. the registered and unregistered trademarks, service marks, and trade dress
have been and continue to be known in mumerous states, including New
York, as marks identifying and distinguishing the products and services of
Plaintilfs, respectively; and

f. the registered and unrcgistered trademarks, service marks, and trade dress
relating to the Protected Characters are inherently distinetive, and have
heen and continue to be known thronghout the United Siates, mcluding
New York, as identifying and distingnishing the business of PlaintifFs,
respectively.

102.  Defendants’ conduct is likely to cause confusion, cause mistake, or to deceive
consumers as to the source, origin, and sponsership of the live appearances of the knock-off
“Barney”, “Baby Bop”, "Bl", “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” costumes.

103.  Upon information and belief, Defendants” activities have caused actval confusion
with consumers as to the source and origin of such costumes.

104, The acts of Defendants will nullify Plaintiffs’ right to the exclusive use of their
trademarks, service marks, and trade dress, free from infringement.

105, Defendants’ activities have had, and will contiitue to have, a substantial, adverse
effect on Plaintiffs® existing and projected future interstate business of marketing products and
services identified by the trademarks, service marks, and trade dress, and on the goodwill of
Plaintiffs’ business connected with the use of, and symbolized by, trademarks, service niacks,
and trade dress.

106. Defendants’ activities and conduct constitute infringement of each of the
Protected Characters’ related trademarks and trade dress, in violation of Sections 32 and 43 of
the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C, §§ 1114 and 1125.

107, In addition, upon informalion and belief, Defendants” wrongful conduct arises

directly out of and is connected (o their advertising activities.
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108, Plaintiffs have been, and continue to be, damaged by Defendants’ activities and
conduct. Defendants have profited thereby and unless their conduct is enjoined, Plaintiffs and
their goodwill and reputations will suffer irreparable injury which cannot be adequately
calculated or compensated solcly by money damages. Accordingly, Plaintiffs seek preliminary
and permanent injunctive relief pursuant to 15 US.C. § 1116.

109, Defendants have intentionally and knowingly used the Protected Characters-
related trade dress, service marks, and trademarks; accordingly, Flaintiffs are entitled to a
judgment of three times their damages, or Defendants’ profits, whichever is greater, together
with rcasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C, § 1117(b).

COUNTII
(False Designation of Origin/False Description - Lanham Act, §43(a))

110.  Plaintiffs tepeat each allegation contained in paragraphs | through 109 of this
Complaint.

111. Lyons is the owner of the intellectual property rights associated with the Bamney™
Characters, and HIT and Gullane arc the cxclusive United States licensees lor the intellectual
propetty associated with the Bob the Builder® and Thomas the Tank Engine™ Characters and
their trade dress.  All of the Prolected Characters are enjoyed by children and their parents
throughout the United States.

112,  The appearances of the Protected Characters constitute inherently distinctive trade
drcss.

113, Plaintiffs have used the Protected Characters and their distinctive trade dress to
provide a secure, friendly, loving feeling for pre-school children who have come to believe in the

Protected Characters as their extraordinary friends.
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114, Plaintiffs have manufactered, markcted, and sold videotapes, DVDs, books, and a

variety of other products featuring the Protected Characters, and have realized substantial income

from such sales.

115, The Protected Characters and their trade dress are recognized as distinctive and
have developed and now possess secondary trademark meaning to the viewers of the Protected
Characters’ television series, videotapes, DVDs, and the authorized personal and/or theatrical
appearances, and to the purchascrs of featuring the Protected Charactlers products.

115.  The acts of Defendants constitute false designations of origin, false descriptions
and representations, and infringement of the frade dress in and to the Protected Characters,
Specifically, Defendants have used, in connection with the provision of, or olfering (0 provide,
knock-off costumes depicting the Protected Characters, words, terms, names, symbaols, and
devices, and combinations thereof, and false or misleading descriptions and representations of
fact, which are likely to cause confusion, or to causc mistake, or to deceive as to the affiliation,
conncetion, or association of Defendants with Plaintiffs, or as to the origin, sponsorship, or
approval of Defendants’ goods, services, or commercial activities by Plaintiffs, in violation of
15 U.8.C. § LIZ5(a)(1)(A).

117, Plamtiffs have been, and continue te be, damaged by Defendants’ activities and
conduct. Defendants have profited thereby and, unless enjoined, Plaintiffs and their goodwill
and reputaticns will suffer irreparable injury which cannot be adequately calculated or
compensated solely by money damages.

118. Defendants’ wrongful conduct arises directly out of and is connected (o their

adverlising activities,
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COUNT 11T
{Unfair Competition— Lanham Act, § 43(al(1)}{B))

119.  Plaintiffs repeat cach allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 118 of this
Complaint.

120.  Defendants” conduct constitutes an attempt to pass off and palm off their products
and scrvices as the products and services of Plaintiffs and their licensees with the intent to
deceive and defrand the public and appropriate to itself Plaintiffs’ rights in and to the Barney®
Characters, Bob the Buildar'@, and the Themas the Tank Enginem Characters trademarks and
service marks. Such acts constitute acts of unfair competition against Plaintiffs under
15 US.C§ 1125{a)1){B).

121.  Plzintiffs have been and continie to be damaged by Defendants’ activitics and
conduct. Accordingly, Plaintiffs arc entitled to recover their damages, as well as Defendants’
profits received as a resuit of the infringement, pursiant 10 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a).

122, Untess Defendants’ conduct is enjoined, Plaintitfs and their goodwill and
repulalions will suffer irreparable injury which cannot be adeguately calculated or compensated
solely by money damages.

123.  Defendants” wrengful conduct arises directly cut of and is connected to their
advertising activities.

COUNT IV
(Infringement of Copyright - Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C, § 501 et seq.)

124,  Plaintiffs repeat each allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 123 of this
Complaint,
125.  Lyons is the owner of the federal copyright registrations in the Barney® Series, as

well as other videotapes, DVDs, books, and live stage shows. See Exhibits C, F, I, and K. These

36

ADGOIGE




Case 1:07-cv-03321-JG-VVP  Document1  Filed 08/10/2007 Page 37 of 44

registrations were duly and lawfully issued by the Copyright Office and remain in full force and
cftect.

126.  HIT 1s the cxclusive United Siates licensee with respect to federal copyright
registrations in episodes of the BTB Series, as well as other videotapes, DVDs, and beoks, a
representative list of which is incorporated by reference and attached hereto, See Exhibit O.
These registrations were duly and lawfully issued by the Copyright foicc and remain in full
force and effect.

127, Gullane is the exclusive United States licensee with respect to federal copyright
registrations in episodes of the Thomas Series, as well as other videotapes, DVDs, books, and
live slage performances, a representative list of which is incorporated by reference and attached
hereto, See Exhibit 5. These registrations were duly and lawfully issued by the Copyright
Office and remain in tull foree and cffcet.

128. The Barney® Characters, Bob the Builder®, and Thomas the Tank Engine”’
Characters are the subject of copyright protection.

129, Lyons, HIT, and Gullane have pubtished the copyrighted works featuring the
Protected Characters in strict compliance with the provisions of the Copyright Act and all other
laws governing copyright, and the images depicted therein, including the ]3511‘11{-,3,9@1 Characters,
and the Bob the Builder® and Thomas the Tank Engine" Characters, have been manufactured
and distributed under the authority of Lyons, HIT, and Gullane.

130.  Lyons has been and still is the owner, and HIT and Gullane have becn and still are
the exclusive United States licensees, with respect to all rights, title, and interest in and to the

copyrights in their respective works,
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131, Defendants have infringed the copyrights in the above-centitled works and in the
Bﬂlﬂﬂ}’@, Bob the Buildcr®, and Thomas the Tank Engim.=.:TM Characters contained therein by
copying, displaying, distributing, renting, and/or sclling knock-off costumes depicting images
subsiantially similar to Plaintiffs” works in violation of the Copyright Act.

132, Based on Defendants’ activities, Lyons, HIT, and Gullane reasonably believe that
Defendants intend to continue the advertisement, marketing, promotion, salc, rental, display and
distribution of their knock-off “Barney”, “Baby Bop”, “BI”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas
the Tank Engine” costumnes.

133.  Lyons, HIT, and Gullane have been and continue to be damaged by Defendants’
activities and conduct. Defendants have profited thereby and, unlcss their conduct is enjoined,
Lyons, HIT, and Gullane and their goodwill and reputations wil! suffer irreparable injury which
cannot be adequately calculated or compensated solely by money damages. Accordingly, Lyons,
HIT, and Gullane seek preliminary and permanent injunctive relief pursuani to 17 U.S.C. § 502.

134, Plaintiffs are cntitled to recover damages, which include its actual losses and any
and all prefits Defendants have made as a result of their infringing conduct. 17 UL5.C. § 304.
Alternatively, Plaintiffs arc entitled to stattory damages under 17 U.S.C. § 504{c).

135, Upon information and belief, Defendants” actions are willful, i that their actions
were at least in reckless disregard of Plaintifls” rights in and to the Protected Characters.
Accordingly, the award of statutory damages should be enhanced in accordance with 17 U.8.C.
§ 504(c)(2).

136.  Furthermore, Plaintiffs are entitled to recover their full costs, including reasonable

attorneys’ fees pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 505.
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COUNT VY
(Common Law Unfair Competition)

137.  Plaintiffs tepeat each allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 136 of this
Complaint.

138.  Upen information and belief, Defendants® actions as described above have been
undertaken with the intention of benefiting from and profiting upon the name and associated
good will connected with the Protected Characters. This goal is accomplished by Defendants’
usc of the name and trademarks and acconpanying trade dress owned by Plaintiffs.

139, Defendants® use of the name and trademarks and accompanying trade dress
owned by Plaintilfs is intended to and unless restrained by this Court will lead and tends to lcad
the public 1o believe that there is a connection or association between Defendants and Plaintiffs,
when in [act there is none,

140 Upon information and belict, Defendants have made and, unless enjoined, will
continue 1o make considerable profit as the direct result of their wrongful actions, which have
been undertaken in wanton, willful, and reckless disregard of Plaintiffs’ rights.

141.  Defendants’ actions injure Plaintiffs® reputation and poodwill and expressly
mislead the public by Ffalsely imputing a connection or relationship between Defendants’ mferior
products and services and Plaintiffs. This will cause Plaintiffs to suffer financially, and
constitute unfair competition in derogation of the common law of the State of New York.

COUNT VI
(Common Law Trademark Infringement)

142,  Plaintifts repeat each allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 141 of this

Complaint.
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143, Defendants have used their substantiaily similar or virtually identical “Barney”,
“Baby Bop”, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” characler costurmes in
performances olfered to consumers in New York State, and have thus inftinged on Plaintiffs’
exclusive commen law trademark rights,

144, Such conduct is likely to cause confusion, deception and mistake in the minds of
members of the public with respect (o the origin, source, and affiliation of cne or more of
Defendants’ kneck-off “Barngy,” *Baby Bop™, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder”, and “Thomas the Tak
Engine” character costumes,

143, Plaintitfs have been and continuc to be damaged by Defﬁ:ndants‘ activities and
conduct. Defendants have profited thereby and, unless their conduct is enjoined, Plaintiffs and
their poodwill, business reputation, and the distinetive quality of Plaintiffs’ trademarks, service
marks, and trade dress will suffer irreparable injury which cannot be adequately calculated or
compensated solely by money damages,

146,  Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.

147, Dcfendanis’ wrongful conduct arises directly out of and is connected to
Defendants® advertising activities.

COUNT VI
(Violation of Section 360-{ of the New York General Business Law)

148.  PlaintifTs repeat each allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 147 of this
Complaint.
149.  The Bamey” Characters, Bob the Builder™, and the Thomas the Tank Engine

Characters are distinctive and/or have acquired secondary meaning in the marketplace,
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150, Defendants’ acts as described above are likely to dilute, have diluted and, unless
enjoined, will continue to dilute the unique and distinctive quality of Plainti{fs” trademarks in the
Bamay‘m Charactcrs, Bob the Builderg, and the Thomas the Tank Engimf:,TM Characters,

151, Specifically, Defendants™ use of marks substantially similar or virtually identical
ta the those of one or morc of the Bamey® Characters, Bob the Builder®, and the Thomas the
Tavk Engine ” Characters in conjunction with the offering and pm\;'isi(m of children's
entertainment services blur and dilute Plaintiffs’ trademarks in such characters as unique
identifiers of Plaintiffs” television programs, movies, DVDs, books, and other media products
featuring the Bﬂl‘ﬂﬂ}-’® Characters, Bob the Builder@, and the Thomas the Tank Engim:'”HI
Characters.

152.  Alternatively, the shoddy quality of Defendants” knock-off *Barmey”, “Baby
Bop”, “BJ”, “Bob the Builder™, and “Thomas the Tank Engine” character costumes that
Defendants use in renting or selling costumes andfor providing children’s enterlainment services
tarmishes and dilutes Plaintiffs” trademarks and service marks as the purchasing public will
associate the lack of quality of Defendants’ cosiumes with Plaintiffs.

153, Defendants’ conduct violates Sechion 360-f of the New York General Business

154.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants® willful and wanton acts and
conduct, Plainttfs’ reputation and goodwill have been damaged.

153,  Defendants” acts and conduct cause irreparable injury to Plaintiffs and to their
reputation and goodwill, and will continue to do so unless enjoined by this Court,

156.  Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law.
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AGIOE

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for the following relief:

1. That Defendants and (heir respective agents, servants, employees,
contractors, and all persons, firms, corporations, or entities acting under
Defendants” direction, authority ot control, and all persons acting in concert with
any of them, be enjoined preliminarily and permancntly from: (a) purchasing,
distributing, displaying, selling, offering to sell, renting, offering to rent, and/or
using adult-size costumes depicting the Barney®, Baby Bep®, and BI®, Bob the
Builder®, and Thomas the Tank Engine™ characlers for children’s entertainment
services or otherwise; (b) using Plaintiffs’ copyrights, trademarks, service marks,
logos, and trade dress, or any copy or imitation of any of them in any manner,
including, but not limited to advertising, promoting, and/er marketing children’s
entertainment serviees; and (¢) committing or inducing others to commil any
other infringing acts caleulated to cause purchasers 1o believe that Defendants
adult-size costumes arc PlaintiiTs’ genuine products;

2. That Defendants be required to account pursuant to 17 U.8.C. § 504 and
15 U.5.C, § 1117 for Plaintifts” losses and Defendants® profits derived from
adverlising, promoting, marketing, purchasing, distributing, displaying, selling,
offering to sell, renting, offering to rent, and/or using adu:lt—size COStUMmes
depicting the Barney®, Baby Bop®, and BI®, Bob the Builder®, and Thomas the
Tank Engine™ characters for children’s entertainment services;

3. That Defendants be ordered to pay statutory damages for willful copyright
infringement in an amount of not less than $150,000 per copyrighted work

infringed;
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4, That Plaintiffs be awarded damages in an anount to be determined at trial

in connection with Defendants’ acts ef trademark infringement, unfair

competition, and dilotion of Plaintiffs’ wademark and trade dress under both the
Lankam Act and New York Law:

3. That all infringing “Barney”, “Baby Bop™, “BI”, *Beb the Builder”, and
“Thomzas the Tank Engine” character costumes, all advertising incorperating
Plaintiffs’ copyrights, trademarks, service marks, logos, and trade dress, or any
copy or imitation of any of them, and any costume molds be surrendered,,
impounded and destroyed pursuant to Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1118 and
Copyright Act, 17 US.C, § 503;

6. That Defendants be ordered to pay Plaintiffs® costs incurred herein,

including reasonable attorneys’ fecs;

7. That trebling of damages be ascertained for all trademark damages
assessed herein;

8. That exemplary and punitive trademark damages be awarded; and

a. That Plaintiffs be awarded such other and further relief as is just, proper,

and equitable.
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff demands a trizl by jury of all issW
DATED: August 9, 2007 By:% >

‘ Toby M. J. Buttetficld
Matthew A, Kaplan

COWAN, DeBAETS, ABRAHAMS &
SHEFPARD LLP

41 Madison Avenue, 34" Floor

New York, New York 10010

Tel: (212)974-7474

Fax: (212)974-8474

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

LYONS PARTNERSHIP, L.P.;
HIT ENTERTAINMENT, INC.;
GULLANE (DELAWARE) LLC;
THOMAS LICENSING, LLC,
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